
/W the STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA TION

Department ofTranaportation 3Q
William Cass, P.E. David Rodrigue, P.E.

Commissioner Assistant Commissioner

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council May 1, 2025

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with the Cooperative
Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST), (Vendor 155553), Dover, New Hampshire, for an
amount not to exceed $1,322,000 for transportation services for the period July I, 2025, through
June 30, 2027, effective upon Governor approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget(s), with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2026 FY 2027

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $661,000 $661,000

EXPLANATION

This agreement includes funding from 2 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) programs: §5311
Rural Area Formula Program and §5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Program.

The Department's proposed FY 2026 and 2027 operating budget includes funding from the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) §5311 Rural Area Formula Program (§5311) that provides
funds for capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with
populations of less than 50,000; these transportation services are open to the general public or
segments of the general public defined by age, disability, or low income. Public transportation
may include fixed route (with complementary paratransit service), deviated/flexible routes, and
demand response modes of service. The funds are awarded for existing and new/expansion
projects. Agencies apply for funding through a biannual solicitation in which all proposed
projects are evaluated.

Additionally, the Department's proposed FY 2026 and 2027 operating budget also includes
funding from the FTA §5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Program (§5310) that provides funds for capital, contracted services, and mobility management
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for seniors and individuals with disabilities in New Hampshire. Funds for §5310 are allocated to
the eight (8) Regional Coordinating Councils (RCCs) to support coordinated transportation
services in each region using a census-based distribution formula. Each individual RCC was
responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, and prioritization and then
submitting one regional application for eligible §5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency voted on by each RCC.

COAST is a private, non-profit organization providing FTA §5311 rural public transportation,
including transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in the Seacoast area. COAST
has been providing traditional public transit services in the seacoast area since 1981,
encompassing the following communities: Portsmouth, Newington, Dover, Somersworth,
Rochester, and Farmington. COAST's existing ser\qce routes were previously designated solely
as a small urban area. This designation enabled COAST to administer small urban funds directly
with FTA. The 2020 Census designated segments of COAST's Route 7 as rural, and COAST is
now eligible for §5311 rural funding. The newly classified Route 7 provides on-demand services
connecting Newmarket, Exeter, and Stratham.

COAST will act as the lead agency for Region 10, Alliance for Community Transportation to
facilitate the provision of accessible demand response transportation services for seniors and
individuals with disabilities within Region 10 and will support mobility management and strategic
planning activities in cooperation with the Regional Coordination Councils. Alliance for
Community Transportation designated COAST as their lead agency. As the lead agency, COAST
is tasked with applying for FTA §5310 RCC funds on behalf of Region 10. As required by FTA,
this project is identified in a locally developed coordinated public transit-human services
transportation plan

The Department has awarded the following funds for Stale Fiscal Year 2026-2027 biennium:

•  §5311 Rural Area Formula Program funds (Project # 68033H)
o $180,000

Details relative to each transit systems evaluation and award are included in the attached
§5311 summary sheet.

•  §5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities Program Funds
o $1,142,000

■  Region 10 Alliance for Community Transportation Council (Project
680341)

Details relative to each Region's award are included in the attached §5310 summaiy sheet.

COAST, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining
required non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general
funds will not be requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year
2026 and 2027 budget. Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of



State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and
Council approval will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments



SFY 2026 - 2027 FTA Section 5311 (Rural) Public Transportation Project Funds

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Rural Public Transportation Formula funds are
eligible to support public transportation ser\'ices in areas with populations of less than 50,000 (rural);
these transportation services are open to the general public or segments of the general public defined by
age, disability, or low income. Public transportation may include fixed route (with complementar)'
paratransit service), deviated/flexible routes, and demand response modes of service. Eligible projects are
limited to Operating Expenses, Administration, Capital Preventive Maintenance, and Capital ADA
Expenses specifically for public transportation in New Hampshire's rural areas. The funds are allocated
for existing and new/expansion projects. Agencies apply for funding through a biannual solicitation in
which all proposed projects are evaluated.

• Operating Expenses - 50% Federal / 50% match

o Net costs directly related to system operations such as fuel, oil, driver, dispatcher salaries,
and fringe benefits.

•  Project Administration - 80% Federal / 20% match

o Costs related to project administrative expenses such as general administrative expenses,
marketing, insurance premiums, office supplies, facilities and equipment rentals, standard
overhead rates, drug, and alcohol testing.

•  Capital Preventive Maintenance (PM) - 80% Federal / 20% match.

o Costs related to all maintenance related to vehicles and non-vehicles including supplies,
materials, labor, ser\'ices, and associated costs to presen'e/extend assets.

1

•  Capital Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Expenses - 80% Federal / 20% match.

o Costs related to complementar}' paratransit services to individuals with disabilities who
cannot use the fixed-route services; a minimum of y4 of a mile on either side of the fixed
route.

The Department released a public notice on February 03, 2025, announcing the availability of §5311
funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 13, 2025. The Department received
applications from six (6) rural public transit agencies, (see table below)

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Project Specialist, reviewed, evaluated, and scored §5311
applications by consensus based on the below criteria.

Note: Ever}' application met the Department's criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2026 - 2027 public transit
funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The
Evaluation criteria, scores, transit systems and respective awards are detailed in the tables below.



Evaluation Criteria Weight

Confirmed that proposed service/projects is eligible for 5311 funding - cite Circular C
9040. IH reference if new project.

Y/N

Seniors and persons with disabilities have full access to the applicant's services.
Y/N

The proposed service is a continuation of existing services. (40% will be granted)
OR

New/Expanded projects only: The application details how the proposed service enhances
an existine service or addresses an NHDOT oolicv eoal foer Statewide Strategic Transit

Assessment fSSTA").

1  isb
40%

^ i

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services. This
includes the applicant's compliance with relevant Federal and state regulations and
having a history of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New
applicants will need to demonstrate ability to comply with FTA requirements.

30%

^ i

The application demonstrates an effort to inyoWe the priyate sector in the delivery of
transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial
and otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government. (Note: This includes
providing evidence of public support for the project from municipal, regional,
institutional and/or private sector partners and describing your efforts to leverage funds
from these partners or other sources to support this project.)

20%

4 1 The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service
area: public, nonprofit, and for-profit

10%

100%

5311 Applicant Transit

System

Consensus

Score

FY 2026

5311 Funds

FY 2027

5311 Funds

Two-Year5311

Totals

Advance Transit

(AT), Wilder, VT
Upper Connecticut
River Valley &
Grafton County,
including Hanover
&. Lebanon

98% $3,670,000 $3,670,000 $7,340,000

Community Action
Program Belknap-
Merrimack County,
Inc. (CAPBMCl),
Concord, NH

Concord Area

Transit

98% $980,000 $980,000 $1,960,000

Community Alliance
for Seacoast

Transportation
(COAST)

COAST segments
of Route 7 between

Exeter & Stratham

(rural as of 2020
Census)

96% $90,000 $90,000 $180,000

Southwestern

Community Services
(SCS)

Sullivan County
Transportation

93% $485,000 $485,000 $970,000

Tri-County
Community Action
Program, Inc.

(TCCAP), Berlin, NH

Carroll County
Transit & North

Country Transit

91% $451,000 $451,000 $902,000

VNA@HCS, Keene,
NH

(Keene) City
Express

91% $277,000 $277,000 $554,000

Totals $5,953,000 $5,953,000 $11,906,000



SFY 2026-2027 FTA Section 5310 Regional Coordination Council Funds

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with
Disabilities funds are eligible to support the eight (8) Regional Coordination Councils (RCCs) for coordinated
transportation services in their regions. The RCCs were established by the State Coordinating Council (SCC),
which was developed as a central body to coordinate community transportation services statewide. FTA §5310
program funds are allocated by a census-based, formula distribution to each region for the following projects:

o

o

Contracted services/mobility management projects - 80% Federal / 20% match
Contracted services - projects include purchase of transportation services from an entity (volunteer
trips, hours of bus service, etc.)
Mobility management - projects include coordination efforts & activities, travel training. &
operation of call centers,

o Regional Mobility Managers - funding for Regional Mobility Managers (RMM)

FTA §5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula primarily based on regional populations
of residents over 65 and those 64 or younger with disabilities to approved lead agencies to facilitate the
provision of accessible demand response transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities
within the regions and will support mobility management and strategic planning activities in cooperation with
the Regional Coordination Councils. As required by FTA, each region and projects are identified in a locally
developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan.

^ Region
Lead Agency

(Contract witli t  Regional Partners Utilizing Funds

SFY 2026

Contract

Amount

SFY 2027

Contract

Amount

Two-Year

5310

Contract

Totals

Region 1

Tri-County
Community Action
Program (TCCAP)

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council
Transport Central
TCCAP

S385,500 $385,500 $771,000
Grafton-Coos

Region 2 Carroll County Retired Senior Volunteer Program
The Gibson Center for Senior Services

TCCAP

$233,000 $233,000 $466,000
Carroll

Region 3 Community Action
Programs Belknap -
Merrimack Counties

(CAPBMCI)

CAPBMCI, RTS

CAPBMCI Volunteer Driver Program
Taxi Voucher

NH Association for the Blind - Future In Sight

$506,800 $506,800 $1,013,600Belknap-
Merrimack

Region 4 Southwestern

Community

Services (SCS)

SCS $208,400 $208,400 $416,800
Sullivan

Region 5

County of Cheshire

County of Cheshire,
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services,
Community Volunteer Transportation Company,
Monadnock Adult Care Center, Keene Senior Center

$312,200 $312,200 $624,400Monadnock

Region

Region 7 Nashua Regional
Planning
Commission

(NRPC)

Nashua Transit System,
Souhegan Valley Transportation Collaborative

$255,500 $255,500 $511,000Nashua

Region

Region 8
Southern NH

Planning
Commission

(SNHPC)

Manchester Transit Authority
Easter Seals

Catholic Charities

SNHPC

Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels

$563,100 $563,100 $1,126,200
Southern NH

/ Manchester

Region

Region 10
Cooperative
Alliance for

Seacoast

Transportation
(COAST)

COAST

Ready Rides
Community Rides
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
(CAPSC) Shuttle
Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels

$571,000 $571,000 $1,142,000

ACTNH

Seacoast

Region

r''' Total . |$3,035,500 $3,035,500 $6,071,000



SFY 2026-2027 FTA Section 5310 Regional Coordination Council Funds

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with
Disabilities funds are eligible to support the eight (8) Regional Coordination Councils (RCCs') for coordinated
transportation services in their regions. The RCC's were established by the State Coordinating Council (SCC),
which was developed as a central body to coordinate community transportation services statewide. FTA §5310
program funds are allocated by a census-based, formula distribution to each region for the following projects:

• Contracted services/mobility management projects - 80% Federal / 20% match
o Contracted services - projects include purchase of transportation services from an entity (volunteer

trips, hours of bus service, etc.)
o Mobility management - projects include coordination efforts & activities, travel training, &

operation of call centers,
o Regional Mobility Managers - funding for Regional Mobility Managers (RMM)

FTA §5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula primarily based on regional populations
of residents over 65 and those 64 or younger with disabilities to approved lead agencies to facilitate the
provision of accessible demand response transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities
within the regions and will support mobility management and strategic planning activities in cooperation with
the Regional Coordination Councils. As required by FTA, each region and projects are identified in a locally
developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan.

1 Region
Lead Agency

(Contract with Regional Partners Utilizing Funds

•SPY 2026

Contract

Amount

SFY 2027

Contract

Amount

Two-Year

5310

Contract

. Totals'

Region 1

Tri-County

Community Action
Program (TCCAP)

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council
Transport Central
TCCAP

S385,500 $385,500 $771,000
Grafton-Cocs

Region 2 Carroll County Retired Senior Volunteer Program
The Gibson Center for Senior Services

TCCAP

S233,000 $233,000 $466,000
Carroll

Region 3 Community Action
Programs Belknap -
Merrimack Counties

(CAPBMCI)

CAPBMCI, RTS

CAPBMCI Volunteer Driver Program
Taxi Voucher

NH Association for the Blind - Future In Sight

$506,800 $506,800 $1,013,600Belknap-
Merrimack

Region 4 Southwestern

Community
Services (SCS)

SCS $208,400 $208,400 $416,800
Sullivan

Region 5

County of Cheshire

County of Cheshire,
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services,
Community Volunteer Transportation Company,
Monadnock Adult Care Center, Keene Senior Center

$312,200 $312,200 $624,400Monadnock

Region

Region 7 Nashua Regional
Planning
Commission

(NRPC)

Nashua Transit System,
Souhegan Valley Transportation Collaborative

$255,500 $255,500 $511,000Nashua

Region

Region 8
Southern NH

Planning
Commission

(SNHPC)

Manchester Transit Authority

Easter Seals

Catholic Charities

SNHPC

Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels

$563,100 $563,100 $1,126,200
Southern NH

/ Manchester

Region

Region 10
Cooperative
Alliance for

Seacoast

Transportation
(COAST)

COAST

Ready Rides
Community Rides
Communit}' Action Partnership of Strafford County
(CAPSC) Shuttle i

Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels

$571,000 $571,000 $1,142,000

ACTNH

Seacoast

Region

Wi. Total ■$3,035,500 $3,035,500 $6,071,000



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

Subject: _SFY 2026 - 2027 FTA Section 5310 RCC Region 10

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address

PC Box 483 & Hazen Dr. Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation
DBA: COAST

1.4. Grantee Address

42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH 03820-5451

1.5 Grantee Phone #

603-743-5777

1.6. Accoimt Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-072

-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30. 2027

1.8. Grant Limitation

$1,322,000

1.9. (jrant OfBcer for State Agency

Frederick Butler, Public Transportation Administrator,
Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signi
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of th

ng this form we certify that we have complied with
s grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Rad Nichols, Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2 N/A Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2 |S|/A

Grantee Signature 3 N/A Name & Title of (jrantee Signer 3 N/A

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Michelle Winters, Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

1.15. ̂ proval by Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: AssistagpAttomey Genora^On: 2' -^2^

1.16. Approval by Govemor and Coimcil (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the (jrantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project")-

Page 1 of 3
Contractor Initials

RCN

Date 4/25/25



♦.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.
5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.

7.
7.1.

7.2.

8.
8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.
9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
F.FFECTTVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of die parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specific^ly provided herein, the Project, including all reports
required by this AgrtOTent, shdl be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT; VOUCHERS;

PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold fixim the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Gi^tee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized,
or equally hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
these general provisions.
rOMPlJANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS, b

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or mimicipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31 -95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of ̂  expenses mctured m connection with the
Project, includmg, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supposed by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar doctunents.
Between the Effective Date and the dale seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal busmess hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all
records pertainmg to matters covered by this Agreement The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examme, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all contracts, mvoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as bat
term is hereinafter defined), and other mformation rclatmg to all matters covered
by this Agreement As used in bis paragraph, "Grantee" mcludes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated wib, controlled by, or under common ownership
wib, be entity identified as be Grantee m block 1.3 of bese provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform
be Project The Grantee warrants bat all personnel engaged m be Project shall
be qualified to perform sudi Project, and shall be properly licensed and auborized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it ball not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or ober person, firm or corporation wib whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform be Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship wib
be State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or tqrpointed.
The Grant Officer shall be be representative of be State hereunder. In be event
of any dispute hereunder, be interpretation of bis Agreement by be Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any bspute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, be word "data" shall mean all infoimatioo and bings
developed or obtained during be performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason ofi this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, (Swings, analyses, graphic representations.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.

n.

11.1.

11.1.1

11.1.2

11.1.3

11.1.4

11.2.

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all vbeber finished or unfinished.
Between be Effective Date and be Completion Date be Grantee shall grant to
be State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examinadon, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any ober
purpose whatsoever. ' S
No data shall be subject to copyright in be United States or any ober coi '}y
anyone ober than be State.
On and after be Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
fiom be State or purchased wib funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be be property of be State, and shall be rctumed to be State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted aubority to
publish, disclose, distribute and oberwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
rONnrnONAL nature or agreement. Notwithstanding anybing in
this Agreement to be contrary, all obligations of be State hereunder, including,
wibout limitatjoni be contmuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
be availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall be State
be li^le for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In be event of a reduction or termination of bose fimds, be State shall
have be right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have be rî t to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving be
Grantee notice of such terminatiotL
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of be followmg acts or omissions ofbe Grantee shall constitute
an event of defeult hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform be Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required bereimder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, be records required heretmder, or
Failure to perform any of be ober covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon be occurrence ofany Event ofDe&ult, be State may take any one, or more,
or all, of be following actions;
Give be Grantee a written notice specifying be Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied wibin, m be absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days fiom be date of be notice; and if be Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving be
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give be Grantee a written notice specifying be Event of Default and susp^ding
all payments to be made under this Agrosment and ordering that be portif jhe
Gr^t Amount which would oberwise accrue to be Grantee during be r'>iod
from be date of such notice until such time as be State determines that be
Grantee has cured be Event of Default shall never be paid to be Grantee; and
Set offagainst any ober obligation be State may owe to be Grantee any damages
be State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat be agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or bob.

TERMINATION.

In be event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason ober than
be conqjletion of be Project, be Grantee shall deliver to be Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after be date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as be 'Tcrminatioo Report") describing in detail dl Project Work
perftHmed, and be Grant Amount euned, to and including be date of terminahotL
In be event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of bese general
provisions, be approval of such a Termination Report by be State shall entitle
be Grantee to receive that portion of be Grant amount earned to and includmg
be date of termination.

In be event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of bese general
provisions, be approval of such a Termination Report by be State shall in no
event relieve be Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by be State as a result of be Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to be contrary, eiber be State or,
except where notice default has been given to be Grantee hereunder, be Grantee,
may terminate bis Agreement wibout cause upon birty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of be Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of be State of New Hampshire or of
be governing body of be locality or localities in which be Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in be review or

Page 2 of 3
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15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

19.

20.

approval of the uodertalcmg or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her pereonal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proce^ thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THF. .STATF.. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subpanted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDEMNXFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, fiom and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by 21.
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the F^ject, and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State ofNew Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereofafter any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver ofany Event ofDefault
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the rî t of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. liiis Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instmment in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
aitd assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THTRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement
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COOPERATIVi: ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION, DBA: COAST
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the foUowing:

2.1. The Grantee may change services as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
"Services") only with the prior written agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and document the availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost more than the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.8. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State on a
monthly or quarterly basis, together wiA all information to support the request. Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests .for payments must be for allowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
the State.

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.11. Final Payment. The Grantee's provision of all reports required under this Agreement is a
condition precedent to final payment.

A.4. Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed,
sex, or national origin.
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6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and any
subgrantee under this agreement. ]

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following;

12.5. The Termination Report must be approved by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(ETA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreement.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200. the FTA reserves a royalty-fi-ee, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to
use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement,
sub-grant, or third party grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in adchtion to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, the FTA
may make available to any grantee or subgrantee its license in the copyright to the date derived
under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting fi"om any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction,
delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement, provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. If the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project shall become
subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or the FTA may direct. J
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A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by adding the foUowing:

15.1 The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals
required for the performance of grant Services.

A.8- Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services which
satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants, contracts, purchase
of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5310: FTA Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities program

SECTION 5311: FTA Formula Grants for Rural Areas program

STATE: The State ofNew Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in each
line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a rurming
basis and carried over to the following month; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is not provided with invoices.

26.2. Accounts Receivable. The Grantee and/or subgrantee shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a fonn approved by the State
and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.
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26.3. Payables. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of funds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
the State: The Division and account numbers from which the f\mds will be drawn, the date of

expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received by the Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the
Grant Manager or designee. Immediately upon payment. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Bach subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager).

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No self-designated
abbreviations are to be used.

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall require each of its employees
to 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such work, or 2)
be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and apply employee's rates of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and cause them to be
posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall maintain records of
employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State including
but not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
as the State or the FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State and the FTA or
their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State and the FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel. Data (as defined in G-1
section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.10. Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose.

26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the
J
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Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the State such sums within thirty
(30) days of the audit date.

26.11. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity reports
within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information or reports
required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

26.12. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the State upon request.

A.10. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
through this or other Agreements between the State and the Grantee;

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1G and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior approval from
the State to procure vehicles.

27.3. All other equipment with a cost more than five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee shall be in the name
of the Grantee; provided, however, that the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that .interest and the renewal thereof. In coimection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a sectirity interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.5. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State, and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040. IH and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
from the State.

A.11. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
to the State a certification that the Project Equipment and Real Property as referenced in Section
27, is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to the State on an annual basis.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the Services described in Exhibit D. The Grantee shall
maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment
manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
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be approved by the Grantee's Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at a location
specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this location. The
Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement to equipment as
requested by the State. The State, the FTA, and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AlVD REPORTS" as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to date
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records available to the State and the FTA
upon demand.

A.14. Amend G-1 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
each vehicle to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The Grantee
shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its daily
operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather or any other circumstances. The
Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the parking or garaging site and any relocation.

A.15. Amend G-1 by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training courses
determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and may require
participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the State shall have the right to review the performance of all drivers who are
employed in connection with this Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose
performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA
266:72-a. in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vehicle used in its Services. In addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

33.2. The Grantee shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering the
previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

33.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.17. Amend G-1 by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34:
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34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Grantee shall not engage in the provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B, or outside the service area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the State and, as applicable, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Grantee shall not engage in charter or school bus operations except as permitted
by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605. respectively.

A.18. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. The Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to
be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hereunder. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.19. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Protective Arrangement, Section 5333(b1 of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.

A.20. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice during or under this grant, which invention, improvement or
discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or any foreign country, the
Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights and
responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof.

A.21. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting fi"om the
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct fi-om the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.
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EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Grantee, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, (hereinafter the
"Grantee") shall provide the following public transportation service(s):

a. Fixed Route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in
the Greater Seacoast Area as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Grantee's
application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail
and Transit (hereinafter "the State") for Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Section 5311 ftinding. The Grantee's application is hereby incorporated by
reference and made part of this agreement.

b. Serve as the lead agency for Region 10 Southeast, for FTA Section 5310 RCC
funds to provide accessible transportation services to seniors and individuals with
disabilities in cooperation with the Region 10 Southeast RCC. The Grantee's
5310 RCC grant application is hereby incorporated by reference and made part of
this agreement. The Grantee agrees to provide all services indicated in the grant
application unless modified per this agreement.

2. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 531 l-fiinded public
transit services provided by Grantee pursuant to this agreement:

a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or
to reduce transportation services provided under this contract. Any alterations to
such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

b. The Grantee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Grantee's grant application to the State, to add, reduce, or adjust transportation
services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation
services, including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall
be requested in writing by the Grantee to the State for approval at least 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject to a public comment period shall be requested at least
60 days in advance. Upon approval of the State, the Grantee shall implement any
alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
State and the Grantee.

c. The Grantee shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service,
or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
State, except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the Grantee shall
notify the State no later than the next working day following the day of such
changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a maximum of five days;



thereafter, the written approval of the State shall be required to continue such
emergency changes.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 5310-funded services
for seniors and individuals with disabilities provided by Grantee pursuant to this
agreement:

a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or
to reduce transportation services provided under this grant. Any alterations to
such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

b. Mobility management activities, and as applicable, transportation services,
subgrantees, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of those submitted
in the Grantee's 5310 Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modified by NHDOT through written notification to the Grantee.
Further amendments to mobility management activities, transportation services,
subgrantee's, and/or maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval fi'om the State.

c. Eligible Regional Mobility Manager expenses shall be limited to those directly
related to the position's role as described within the 2016 '"New Hampshire
Statewide Coordination of Communitv Transportation Services Plan" and/or
within the most recent ̂ 'New Hampshire Statewide Mobility Manager Network: A
Blueprint for Implementation", both hereby incorporated by reference. Roles may
be further modified based on those recommended by the Statewide Coordinating
Coimcil (SCC) and approved in writing by the State.

d. All services provided shall conform to FTA Section 5310 guidelines. Per FTA
requirements, the Grantee shall be responsible for oversight of subgrantees and
contractors relative to FTA requirements.

e. The Grantee shall ensure the provision of ADA-accessible services within the
RCC region. Any marketing materials, brochures, and other service information
shall describe it as ADA-accessible. It is acceptable for a subgrantee/lower tier
subrecipient that does not utilize accessible vehicles to contract with an accessible
provider in order to meet this requirement.

f. The Grantee must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of
services throughout the grant period regardless of expenses exceeding the
maximum allowed to be reimbursed. As necessary, the Grantee shall establish trip
priorities to ensure funds are not expended prematurely.

g. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or
to reduce transportation services provided imder this grant. Any alterations to



such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless another timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.



COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION, DBA: COAST
EXfflBIT C

BUDGET

The Grant price, as defined in § 1.8 of the General Provisions, are the FTA §5310 portion of
the eligible project costs. Federal (FTA) hands are granted as follows:

REGION 10 COAST

lFTA'Sectioh'53iT;^:P^^ ilivg'SFy/202;7l^|^;
Administration $50,000 $50,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance $8,000 $8,000

Capital ADA $0 $0

Operating $32,000 $32,000

^:SFYr202^i
Contracted Services $234,076 $225,420

Mobility Management $219,663 $224,215

Regional Mobility Manager Position $117,261 $121,365

:iTotalETA\SeWiotf53lM

tlS^ywr FT^^5![10.RCG^

erTbtsil Fedwair(TTAVFun

jTotarTworYeap^G
a. Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.

II. Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Grantee's first request for
reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit to the State a budget incorporating all fimds to be
expended in the provision of services pursuant to this Grant.

b. Budget revisions may be made with written approval of the State. Also, approval
by the appropriate Regional Coordination Council (RCC) is required for 5310
RCC budget revisions.

c. At the sole discretion of the State, the Grantee may carry forward any unexpended
portion of the federal fimds included in the Grant Price to a subsequent Grant, if
any, between the State and the Grantee.

III. The Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting a monthly or quarterly
invoice for the total eligible expenses, less agency match as applicable, to the State.

d. The invoice must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and
statements fi-om service providers, as applicable, to support the request for
matching funds.



IV. Mobility management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to
support the request.

e. The Grantee will verify that trip reimbmsement is for non-Medicaid-eligible trips
only.

V. For expenses other than contracted services, the Grantee may seek reimbursement only for
eligible expenses listed in the budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the State, except
for funds specifically reserved, if any, and identified in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at
the end of this Exhibit.



Section 239:2 Cooperative Alliance tor Seacoast transportation hstaDlisned. rage i or i

TITLE XX

)  TRANSPOMTATION

CHAPTER 239

COOPERATIVE ALLIANCEFOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

Section 239:2

239:2 Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation Established. - There is hereby established a public body
corporate and politic having a distinct legal existence separate' frorti the state and not constituting a department or
agency of the state government to be known as the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, also known as
COAST. The public purpose of COAST is to acquire, own, and operate or cause to be operated a regional mass
transportation system.

Source. 1985, 185:1, eff. July 27, 1985.

ittp://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/XX/239/239-2.htm 3/25/2015



□

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

(name), hereby certify that 1 am a duly elected Officer
of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST), t hereby certify the
following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the duly authorized Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on April 23, 2025, at which a
quorum of the Committee were present and voting.

VOTED: That Rad Nichots, Executive Director is duly authorized to
enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of COAST with the State of
New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any documents which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full
force and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution.
I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this
Certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupy the position
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that
there are any limits on the authority of the listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated
herein.

Date: Attest:
Signature

ScqL chk'r
Name & Title

)



ACCmcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

10/03/2024

THIS CERTinCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERHRCATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFHRMATfVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERT1RCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATTVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

^ORTANT If the certificate holder Is an ADOmONAL INSURED, the policy(i68) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
1. SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

Cross insurance-Manchester

1100 Bm Street

Manchester NH 03101

contact Kari Lee

(K.EX.): {603)669^218 ri^.No): (603)645-1331
ACCESS- kari.leeigcrossagency.com

INSUREIUS) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAICff

INSURERA National Interstate Ins. Co. 32620

INSURED

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

42 Sumner Drive

Dover NH 03820

INSURER B

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURERS

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All Linos REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXauSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IRSin
TYPE OF INSURANCE

KUeVEFF MUeVEKF
LwrrsLTR POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER;

PRO
JECTPOUCY □ JgS □ LOC

OTHER:

GLR024180503

(MMIDOWYYYI

10/01/2024

fMMmO/YYYYI

10/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO REFnnj
PREMISES fEa occurrwK<>

MED EXP (Any orn ptnon)

PERSONAL &AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Employee Benefit
GOMBINEO-SINGLE LIMIT
fEa Bccktentl

5,000.000

100.000

5,000

5,000,000

5.000,000

5,000,000

S 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

S 250,000

X

BODILY INJURY (Per pereon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

CAR024180504 10/01/2024 10/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per Bcddent)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5.000.000

ERXR024180504 10/01/2024 10A)1/2025 AGGREGATE 5,000,000

RETENTION $
61h-
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABILiTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendetary In NH)
If yes, deecrtoe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

□

PER
STATUTE

N/A
EL EACHACaDENT

EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMfT

Excess Uabillty over Auto UabBfty
Per Occurrence ODX024180504 10/01/2024 lOrt)1/2025

Limit

Deductible

4,750,000

250,000

DESCRtPnON OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 1(H, AddWonel Remarks Schedule, may be etiaehed if more apace la required)

Public Offldals Liability
POL09514064)5
11/01/2023-10/01/24
Indian Harbor Insurance Co
Limit: $1,000,000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHDOT, Bureau of RaB and Transit

1  Attn: Paula Bennett
7 Hazen Drfve, PO Box 483

(>)ncord NH 03302-0483

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WTTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)
e 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



WNHMTA
HIW nAMI

P.O. Box 3898

Concord. NH 03302-3698
(603) 224-7337

n

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.

This la to certify that: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation Certificate #: 4

42 Sumner Drive

Dover, NH 03820

to. a^l»su0 date of this cerWcsta, Insured by Om Company under the pafloy(lM)B»tadbetoM Th« irnurawe cdTorded by the Bstod poScy(lM) It
and i» not Bllored by any lequfiement, tenn or oondftton or other document with reepeot to which this

COVERAGE AFFORDED UNDER WC UW OF THE FOLLOWING STATE: NH

j TYPE OF POLICY EXPDATE POLICY NUMBER UMTTOF UABILITY

Confinucxis*

Extended

Policy Term

Workers' Compensation

Any
PropfMocfPaitnerfExecullve
Offloei/Member Excluded?

Yes; □
If yes, describe under
Descrfpflon of OperaBons below

01/01/2028-01/01/2028 P000843NHMTA2026 BodDy Inlury By Accident 31,000,000

Bodily Injury by Disease Poilcy Umit 31.000.000

Bodily Ij^ by Disease Each Pefson 31,000,000

Descrl^fion of C^ierslkMis:

•If the oertnoate expbatlon dale Ii continuous or extended term, you wO be noUnad if coverage Is terminated or reduced before the certlRceta exptration tV*

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION; (Not applicable unless a number of days Is entered below.) Before the eteted ejqjiration date, the company wID not
cancel or reduce the Insurance afforded under the above poScies untD et least 30 days. NcUca of such cancenation has been mailed to:

NH MOTOR TRANSPORT ASSOCIATION SELF-INSURANCE GROUP TRUST

NHDOT, Bureau of Rail and Transit
Attn: Paula Devena, Transit Grants
Coordinator
7 Hazen Drive, PC Box 48
Concord. NH 03302

Concord. NH

Authorized Representative

603-224-7337 11/18/2024
Office Phone Number Date Iseued )
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Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (C0AST1 The

Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) X .

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the ̂ licable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category Certificatioii

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Coital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capita! Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infi^tructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF AFPUCANT

Name of the ̂ plicaat; Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these

Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,

and requirements, follow ̂ plicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as

indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each ̂ plication its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal

Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or

her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects ̂ ply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may

later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the

statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the

Program Fraud Civil Remedies Actofl986,31 U.S.C. §3801 and implementing U.S. E)OT regulations,

"Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR part 31, ̂ply to any certification, assurance or submission made to

FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in

connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing this document, I declare under penalties of peijury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and

any other statements made by me on behalf of the Applicant are true and accurate.

Signature Date: March 1.2024

Name Rad Nichols. Executive Director Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

COAST 6/11/2024

Name of Agency

Rad Nichols

te

Name of Authorized Official Signature
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 4/8/2025

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name ofRecipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: Cooperative Alliancefor Seacoast Transportation

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, shall comply with all applicable federal
laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $1,142,000

Assistance Listing Number (ALN) (f/k/a CFDA): 20.513

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2023-012-01

Federal Award Date: 8/16/24

Contact information for sub-awardine official:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: Frederick.LButler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: RTMFG5LQG5A1

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Rad Nichols

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or. if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in 2 CFR 200.332(b)(4)(i)(A)(B) and
(ii). httDs://www.ecfr.sov/current/litle-2/subti(le-A/chapter-Il/Dart-200



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 4/8/2025

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/25 End Date: 6/30/28

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action (aereement/amendment)'.

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $1,142,000

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecioient (0ri2inal agreement A amendments^

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $1,142,000

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance forSeacoast Transportation agrees to meet all
requirement imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the
Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance forSeacoast Transportation agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: 4/25/25

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Rad Nichols

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 04/8/2025

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name ofRecipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: Cooperative Alliancefor Seacoast Transportation

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, shall comply with all applicable federal
laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $180,000

Assistance Listing Number (ALN) (f/k/a CFDA): 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2024-007

Federal Award Date: 7/22/24

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

Subrecipient SAM.GOV Unique Entity ID (UEI): RTMFG5LQG5A1

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Rad Nichols

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in 2 CFR 200.332(b)(4)(i)(A)(B) and
(ii). httDs://www.ecfr.2Ov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chaDter-U/Dart-200
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 04/8/2025

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/25 End Date; 6/30/27

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action raereement/amendmenti:

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5311 Amount: $180,000

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipieni (orieinal aereement A amendments):

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5311 Amount: $180,000

Pass-through reauirements;

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance forSeacoast Transportation agrees to meet all
requirement imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the
Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: 4/25/25

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Rad Nichols

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

February 2, 2024

To the Board of Directors

of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Cooperative Alliance for
Seacoast Transportation (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be

independent of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design. Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation's ability to continue as a going concern

within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be Issued.

Auditor^s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood

that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a

reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and

Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast

Transportation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast

Transportation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain

Internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financiai statements as

a whole. The accompanying schedules of grant expenditures are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financiai statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financiai statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such Information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, in our opinion, the
schedules of grant expenditures are fairly stated, in ail material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 2, 2024, on our consideration of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast
Transportation's internal control over financiai reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financiai reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast
Transportation's internal control over financiai reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation's internal control over
financiai reporting and compliance.

F G. CPA
Prafei^C<>fuilAiiocccttCori^



COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2022

ASS^S

2023

Assets

Cash and equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Accounts receivable - grants

Accounts receivable - other

Prepaid expenses

Inventories

Structures and equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

1,876,290

410,746

1,112,730

73,898

50,019

103,058

3,966,282

$  7,593,023

2022

$  1,975,763

571,924

99,313

45,849

106,369

4,206,913

S  7,006,131

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

146,452

315,415

95,034

215,364

302,703

78,972

TOTAL LIABILITIES 556,901 597,039

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions 7,036,122 6,409,092

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

7,036,122

7,593,023

6,409,092

$  7,006,131

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COOPERATIVE AaiANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support

Federal and state grants - operating and planning

State and local contributions - operating and planning

RIdership revenue

Advertising revenue

Noncash contributions

Other revenue (losses)

Interest Income

Total Without Donor Restrictions Support

5,037,742

1,679,204

331,728

274,619

17,632

11,313

25,358

7,377,596

2022

4,754,792

1,485,207

308,136

212,807

6,627

(13,603)

2,281

6,756,247

Expenses

Program

Administration

Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets from Operations

Other Changes

Federal grants - capital

Local match - capital

Total Other Changes

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions, Beginning of Year

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions, End of Year

5,707,551

1,338,722

30,631

7,076,904

300,692

326,338

326,338

627,030

6,409,092

5,479,575

1,340,637

24,044

6,844,256

(88,009)

1,897,693

205,503

2,103,196

2,015,187

4,393,905

7,036,122 $  6,409,092

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Transit Maintenance

Other

Program

Total

Program

Admin

istration

Fund-

raising

Total

Supporting

Services

Total

Expenses

Drivers' salaries S 1,489,951 $ - $ $ 1,489,951 $ s - S $ 1,489,951
Operations and administrative salaries 885,284 353,921 226,574 1,465,779 477,027 18,897 495,924 1,961,703

Payroll taxes 173,888 27,093 16,559 217,540 32,659 1,446 34,105 251,645

Benefits 575,642 96,528 51,798 723,968 127,804 4,994 132,798 856,766

Insurance and other fees 32,541 3,928 - 36,469 472,778 - 472,778 509,247

Advertising 6,085 - 2,347 8,432 113,336 - 113,336 121,768

Consulting services 4,169 - 1,440 5,609 34,484 - 34,484 40,093

Mechanical services - 51,737 - 51,737 - - - 51,737

Other services 38,488 6,600 188,265 233,353 18,501 - 18,501 251,854

Facilities cleaning - 20,688 - 20,688 - - - 20,688

Fuel/oil 520,320 - - 520,320 - - - 520,320

Tires, parts and supplies 46,606 120,040 - 166,646 - - - 166,646

Occupancy - 54,097 15,019 69,116 26,928 3,672 30,600 99,716

Dues and subscriptions 975 - - 975 7,112 - 7,112 8,087

Travel and training 2,392 230 600 3,222 8,854 - 8,854 12,076

Telephone 15,727 1,968 - 17,695 5,634 - 5,634 23,329

Office supplies 24,844 2,350 3,315 30,509 11,893 1,622 13,515 44,024

Depreciation 633,256 12,286 - 645,542 1,712 - 1,712 647,254

Total Expenditures $ 4,450,168 S 751,466 $  505,917 S 5,707,551 S 1,338,722 $ 30,631 S 1,369,353 $ 7,076,904

See Notes to Fln?-^'^lal Statements



COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEAC0A5TTRANSP0RTATI0N

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Transit Maintenance

Other

Program

Total

Program

Admin

istration

Fund-

raising

Total

Supporting

Services

Total

Expenses

Drivers' salaries S 1,294,000 $ - $ S 1,294,000 $ $ - $ $ 1,294,000
Operations and administrative salaries 763,858 317,656 210,475 1,291,989 423,642 14,293 437,935 1,729,924

Payroll taxes 155,230 24,657 15,857 195,744 30,813 1,093 31,906 227,650

Benefits 525,412 112,190 60,459 698,061 146,438 4,457 150,895 848,956

Insurance and other fees 46,205 5,666 - 51,871 480,292 - 480,292 532,163
Advertising 6,279 - 1,241 7,520 134,013 - 134,013 141,533

Consulting services 3,090 - 2,879 5,969 43,385 - 43,385 49,354

Mechanical services - 62,744 - 62,744 - - - 62,744

Other services 59,345 17,047 161,507 237,899 21,807 - 21,807 259,706

Facilities cleaning - 17,261 • 17,261 - - - 17,261

Fuel/oil 539,166 - - 539,166 - • - 539,166

Tires, parts and supplies 39,262 145,849 - 185,111 - - - 185,111

Occupancy - 45,049 12,146 57,195 27,540 3,060 30,600 87,795

Dues and subscriptions 925 - - 925 9,319 - 9,319 10,244

Travel and training 1,066 - - 1,066 5,102 - 5,102 6,168

Telephone 14,863 1,239 - 16,102 6,013 - 6,013 22,115

Office supplies 30,596 130 - 30,726 10,270 1,141 11,411 42,137

Depreciation 773,276 12,950 - 786,226 2,003 - 2,003 788,229

Total Expenditures $ 4,252,573 S 762,438 $  464,564 $ 5,479,575 $ 1,340,637 $ 24,044 $ 1,364,681 $ 6,844,256

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets $ 627,030 $ 2,015,187
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 647,254 788,229
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets (6,365) 14,534
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (515,391) (62,694)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 3,311 (19,504)
(Increase) decrease In prepaid expense (4,170) (6,726)
Increase (decrease) In accounts payable (76,146) (9,277)
Increase (decrease) In accrued expenses 12,712 50,520
Increase (decrease) in refundable advances 16,062 35,185

Total Adjustments 77,267 790,267
Net cash provided by operating activities 704,297 2,805,454

Cash Flows For Investing Activities

(Investment in) redemption of certificates of deposit (410,746)
Payments for the purchase of property and equipment (399,389) (2,359,590)
Proceeds from the disposition of assets 6,365 35,742

Net cash used for investing activities (803,770) (2,323,848)

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents (99,473) 481,606

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 1,975,763 1,494,157

Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 1,876,290 $ 1,975,763

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 1; NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) is organized as a Public Nonprofit Corporation
and was formed in 1982 to promote and provide public mass transportation for southeastern New
Hampshire. The Organization provides administrative, planning, para-transit, and coordination services.
COAST receives approximately 70% of its funding directly from the federal government. The balance of
its funding comes from local sources, primarily municipalities served by the transit routes.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations as promulgated by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. They are stated on the accrual basis and include all material
accounts receivable and payable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2020-07, "Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit
Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets." This Update Improves transparency in the reporting of
contributed nonfinancial assets by nonprofit organizations. COAST must present contributed

nonfinancial assets as a separate line Item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash
and other financial assets. Additional disclosures about nonfinancial assets are also required by this

Update. COAST adopted this ASU on October 1, 2022.

COAST implemented ASU 2020-07 using a full retrospective method of application. The adoption of ASU
2020-07 resulted in changes to the disclosure of revenue. There were no material changes to the
recognition of revenue as a result of the application of ASU 2020-07; however, the presentation of
revenue changed and has been reflected In the prior year's comparative statement of activities. No
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded upon adoption.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, "Leases". This ASU affects any entity that enters into a
lease, with some specified scope exemptions. The main difference between previous GAAP and this ASU
is the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating
leases under previous GAAP. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021. COAST adopted this ASU on October 1, 2022. There were no material changes to

the financial statements as a result of the application of ASU 2016-02. No cumulative effect adjustment
was recorded upon adoption.



COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOASTTRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 2; SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board as applicable

to not-for-profit organizations. Under these standards, the Organization Is required to report

Information regarding Its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as

applicable: net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions.

Descriptions of the two net asset categories are as follows;

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that is subject to donor-imposed restrictions (donors

Include other types of contributors, including makers of certain grants).

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit that Is not subject to donor-Imposed restrictions (donors

Include other types of contributors. Including makers of certain grants).

A donor-imposed restriction Is a donor stipulation (donors Include other types of contributors. Including

makers of certain grants) that specifies a use for a contributed asset that Is more specific than broad

limits resulting from the following:

a. The nature of the not-for-profit entity (NFP)

b. The environment In which It operates

c. The purposes specified In Its articles of Incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents for an

unincorporated association.

The Organization reflects all resources used for operations as net assets without donor restrictions since
any restricted revenues are generally received and spent In the same year.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, COAST considers all unrestricted, highly liquid investments
with an Initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Receivables

No allowance for doubtful accounts has been reflected since management believes all accounts

receivable to be collectible. Accounts receivable will be considered delinquent based on the contractual

terms of the agreement. COAST does not assess Interest on outstanding or past-due balances.
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed Assets

Structures and equipment are stated at cost if purchased or fair market value if contributed.
Depreciation is recorded on the straight-iine method over a two to twenty-five year period.
Expenditures for additions, renewals and betterments of buildings and equipment, unless of a relatively
minor amount, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Inventory

Inventory, which consists of fuel and bus parts, is stated at the lower of cost or market.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of COAST's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal contracts and grants, which
are conditioned upon costs of providing transit services. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when COAST has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant performance
requirements {incurring costs for providing transit services).

income taxes

No income tax provision has been included in the financial statements of COAST since it is a not-for-
profit entity exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code. It has been
classified as an organization that is not a private foundation. COAST has analyzed its tax positions and
has determined that there are no unrecognized tax obligations to record.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and supporting services are summarized on a functional basis In
the statement of activities. Expenses are directly charged to the appropriate activity, where feasible.
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, they may require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. This basis Included personnel cost allocations which are based on the estimates of
time and effort.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions In preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassified to enhance
comparability with the current year's financial statements.
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 3: LIQUIDITY AND AVAIUBILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by

amounts not available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year. The Organization's

working capital and cash flows have variations during the year primarily due to the inconsistent
collections of accounts receivable.

As part of the Organization's liquidity management plan, funds in excess of general requirements are

invested in certificates of deposit.

Financial assets at year>end:

Cash and equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Accounts and grants receivable

Total

2023

$  1,876,290

410,746

1,186,628

2022

$  1,975,763

671,237

$ 3,473,664 $ 2,647,000

NOTE 4: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

COAST maintains accounts with Chase Bank, First Seacoast Bank and TO Bank that at times exceed the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limit of $250,000. At September 30, 2023, the bank

balances for each institution totaled $985,573, $722,426 and $326,514, respectively.

The majority of the funding for COAST is received directly from the Federal Government. Accounts

receivable at September 30, 2023 includes $984,778 from the federal Government and a total of
$127,952 from the states of New Hampshire and Maine.

NOTE 5: STRUaURES AND EQUIPMENT

Structures and equipment consist of the following components at September 30, 2023 and 2022.

2023 2022

Structures, land and leasehold improvements

Equipment, vehicles and furniture

Amenities and miscellaneous

Accumulated depreciation

$ 1,767,636

9,341,538

769,627

11,878,801

(7,912,519)

$ 3,966,282

$ 1,576,603

9,364,453

693,794

11,634,850

(7,427,937)

$ 4,206,913
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 5: STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Included in these figures are three vehicles which are not currently used in operations by COAST. The
vehicles are used by community agencies in the provision of transit services for the elderly and disabled.
COAST retains the title to these vehicles and would take possession of the vehicles if these services were

to cease. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, these vehicles are fully depreciated.

NOTE 6: REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

COAST recognizes conditional Income from grants as services are provided and conditions are met.
,  Funds received in advance are recorded as refundable advances.

NOTE 7: NONCASH CONTRIBUTIONS

Noncash contributions Is comprised of drivers for on-demand transit services and discounted rental
charges for the use of office facilities. On-demand transit services were valued at $14,632 and $3,627
for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Annual discounted rental charges were
$3,000 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. The value of contributed services of other
volunteers is not reflected in these statements since the services did not meet the criteria for

recognition.

NOTE 8: OPERATIONS

Transit operation expenditures are detailed in the Supplemental Data "Grant Expenditures - Operating
Grants." Costs are recorded in accordance with the FTA as set forth in its National Transit Database

Uniform System of Accounts. Reimbursement rates are 50%, 80% or 100%. Preventive maintenance
and facility expenses are included in maintenance.

NOTE 9: PENSION PLAN

COAST has a SIMPLE pension plan. The organization matches employee contributions up to three
percent of salaries. The cost for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 were $47,069 and
$46,148, respectively.
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 10: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

COAST receives money from the federal government under grants. Under the terms of these grants,
COAST Is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes specified In the grant
proposals. If the expenditures of the grant were found not to be In compliance with the proposal,
COAST might be required to repay the grantor's funds. The federal government also has an interest in
equipment purchased with federal funds. Because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
by grantor agency audits as of September 30, 2023, no provision has been made for this contingency.

NOTE 11: COLLABORATION

During the year ended September 30, 2009, COAST and Stafford Network (a nonprofit organization)
formed a working committee known as the Alliance for Community Transportation (ACT) for the
purposes of establishing and advancing a transportation brokerage network In the area. COAST has
agreed to receive grant funding and provide human resource and oversight of the Manager of
Coordination Planning and Operations. COAST also provides dispatch and operational support.
Expenditures for this project in the amount of $479,995, and related revenue of $516,745, are included
in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2023.

NOTE 12: COMMITMENTS

Lease Commitment

On October 1, 2021, COAST entered into a new three-year rental agreement for Its office facilities.
The agreement Includes the right to terminate the commitment without cause upon at least a ninety
days' written notice to the landlord. The market value of the rented space Is $2,550 per month and
the landlord agrees to provide a $250 per month contribution towards the market value. COAST
owes a net monthly payment of $2,300. COAST will continue to pay a pro rata share of utilities and
internal maintenance and repairs. For each of the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, COAST
incurred net rent expense of $27,600 and was allotted $3,000 in contributions from the landlord.
COAST continues to pay a pro rata share of utilities and Internal maintenance and repairs.

Future minimum lease payments for the subsequent fiscal year end Is as follows:
2024 $ 30,600
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COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 12; COMMITMENTS (continued)

Construction of New Facility Commitment

COAST is in the planning process of the construction of a new 48,000 square foot facility to house its
transit operations and administrative offices. The estimated cost of the new facility is approximately
$17,350,000. Funds for the project will come from a blend of sources. Including $13,760,000 In
Federal Transit Authority (FTA) capital grants, which will require $3,590,000 In matching funds.
COAST is in the process of raising the matching funds.

Through the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, COAST has been awarded $12,161,600 in federal
grants, of which COAST has drawn down $407,790, or 80% of its $509,738 In related expenditures.

Minibuses Commitment

At September 30, 2023, four Frontrunner minibuses were delivered to COAST but not accepted,
subject to inspection against the purchasing contract. The delivered buses must also meet FTA
requirements before a payment is made. Once the buses are accepted by COAST, it is committed to
paying $190,501 for each bus or $762,004 in total. As of this date, the buses have subsequently been
accepted.

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 2, 2024, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be Issued.
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Grant Exoenditures - Ooeratine Grants

Total

Transit Maintenance Operations

Admin

istration

&

Fundraising

Total

Expenses

Drivers' salaries $ 1,489,951 $ - $ 1,489,951 S S 1,489,951

Operations and administrative salaries 885,284 353,921 1,239,205 495,924 1,735,129

Payroll taxes 173,888 27,093 200,981 34,105 235,086

Benefits 575,642 96,528 672,170 132,798 804,968

Insurance and other fees 32,541 3,928 36,469 472,778 509,247

Advertising 6,085 - 6,085 113,336 119,421

Consulting services 4,169 - 4,169 34,484 38,653

Mechanical services - 51,737 51,737 - 51,737

Other services 38,488 6,600 45,088 18,501 63,589

Facilities cleaning - 20,688 20,688 - 20,688

Fuel/oil 520,320 - 520,320 - 520,320

Tires, parts and supplies 46,606 120,040 166,646 - 166,646

Occupancy - 54,097 54,097 30,600 84,697

Dues and subscriptions 975 - 975 7,112 8,087

Travel and training 2,392 230 2,622 8,854 11,476

Telephone 15,727 1,968 17,695 5,634 23,329

Office supplies 24,844 2,350 27,194 13,515 40,709

Depreciation 633,256 12,286 645,542 1,712 647,254

Total Expenditures $ 4,450,168 s 751,466 S 5,201,634 S 1,369,353 S 6,570,987

Federal Match

NH-2020-002

NH-2020-005

NH-2021-012

NH-2022-003

NH-2021-01S

$  60,139

963,266

1,069,690

1,035,490

1,427,238

Total Match $ 4,555,823

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Grant Expenditures - Other Grants

Administrative Expenditures

Salaries

Payroll taxes

ACT Regional

Coordination

Financial &

Strategic

Planning

Travel

Demand

Management

12,691 $

1,051

Total

Operations

$  12,691

1,051

Program Expenditures

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Benefits

Advertising

Consulting services

Other services - providers

Occupancy

Office supplies

Travel and training

Total Expenditures

213,713

15,494

51,798

2,347

177,812

15,019

3,212

600

170

14

1,440

10,453

103

213,883

15,508

51,798

2,347

1,440

188,265

15,019

3,315

600

479,995 $ 13,742 $ 12,180 $ 505,917

Federal Match

NH-2020-002 $ 20,737

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire

NH-1385-2019 461,181

Total Match $ 461,181

See Notes to Financial Sta
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Grant Expenditures - Capital Grants

Capital Expenditures

Structures and improvements

Equipment

$  201,994

206,041

Total Expenditures $ 408,035

Federal Match

NH-2020-002

NH-2021-012

NH-2022-015

NH-2022-016

10,630

126,117

28,000

161,591

Total Match 326,338

J

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COAST BOARD OF DIREaORS CONTAa INFORMATION • As of October 1, 2022

'/J^'jvNamerTftle.Coritahlnfonnation ^V
i -Ad-- ^^LL 'k

•-w-T ' i.ri3,T *r-i a.J'-
1". "-i - i'-'-'

i4j-, . .'<■■■ Representing . %? T? .->Townof Resldency.5-1^.-5^ Meml»r^jnM

DENNIS SHANAHAN, Chair
City Councilor, City of Dover

City of Dover Dover, NH 2018

MICHAEL SCALA, Vice Chair
Director of Economic Development

City of Rochester Rochester, NH 2020

SCOTT BOGLE, Treasurer
Senior Transportation Planner, RPC

Rocklngham Planning
Commission

Durham, NH 2001

MARGARET JOYCE, Secretary
President, Gtr Dover Chamber of Commerce

Area Chamber of Commerce Nottingham, NH 2020

DAVE SANDMANN, Past Chair
At-Larfte Member

At-Large Greenland, NH 2011
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sOnke dornbllit
Newmarket Resident

Town of Newmarket Newmarket, NH 2021

BENJAMIN FLETCHER

Director of Parking
City of Portsmouth North Hampton, NH 2021

ROBERT GIBSON

City Councilor
City of Somersworth Somersworth, NH 2022

LAUREN HALEY

Social Worker
At-Large Rochester, NH 2021

DENIS HEBERT

Planning Board Chair
Town of Newington Newington, NH 2016

COUN LENTZ

Transportation Planner, SRPC
Strafford Regional Planning

Commission
Rochester, NH 2014

KRISTEN MURPHY

Conservation & Sustalnability Planner
Town of Exeter Dover, NH 2022

NICK TAYLOR

Executive Director

Workforce Housing Coalition
of the Greater Seacoast

Raymond, NH 2022

SHELLEY WINTERS (ex-offido)
Public Transportation Administrator

NH DOT

Bureau of Rails and Transit
Concord, NH 2013

THOMAS WRIGHT

Chair, Berwidc Selectmen
Town of Berwick Berwick, ME 2018
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KENDRAAMARAL

Town Manager
Town of Kittery Kittery, ME 2020

DONNA BENTON

Assistant City Planner
City of Dover Raymond, NH 2015

FRED BUTUR

Public Transportation Administrator
NHDOT

Bureau of Rails and Transit
Gilford, NH 2021

BLAINECOX

City Manager
City of Rochester Lee, NH 2018

JEN CZYSZ

Executive Director

Strafford Regional Planning
Commission

Concord, NH 2018

RUSSEU DEAN

Town Manager
Town of Exeter Exeter, NH 2018

CAROL GULLA

Executive Director, TASC
At-Large Newmarket, NH 2017

JOANN NEUMANN

Chief Community Development Officer
Families First Health &

Support Center
Portsmouth, NH 2022

TIM ROACHE

Executive Director

Rocklngham Planning
Commission

Stratham. NH 2018

PETER STITH

Principal Planner
City of Portsmouth Kittery Point, ME 2021



#13 - Key Personnel

Key Project Personnel and Salaries

Jeff Donald, $74,243.24 budgeted for SFY24, $$76,470.54 budgeted
for SFY23



JEFF DONALD

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

COAST. Dover, NH 2013 - Present
Regions! Mobility Manager
•  Manage TripLink, a regional call center that handles ride requests from seniors and individuals with disabilities

on behalf of ACT, COAST, Ready Rides, Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels, and the Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County. Recruit additional partner agencies to reduce overhead costs and provide
seamless service for transportation users. Develop business rules and policies for new partners. TripLink's
service partners provided over 27,000 rides In FY20.

•  Provide staff support for the multi-agency Regional Coordination Council for Community Transportation for
Southeastern NH (Alliance for Community Transportation), including setting the agenda and moderating
council discussions. Regional Coordination Councils around the state work to improve their regions'
transportation networks by helping transportation providers coordinate and collaborate. Our region's work if
often highlighted for the success of TripLink, a regional transportation call center.

•  Manage a $500,000 budget, including applying for federal grants. Apply for philanthropic, municipal, and
county grants and develop other income streams to serve as local match to Federal Transit Administration
grants.

•  Leader in statewide work on transportation coordination, cun'ently chairing the State Coordinating Council for
Community Transportation's Regional Mobility Manager subcommittee, serving on the NH Alliance for Healthy
Aging's Transportation Workgroup, launching a volunteer driver program networking group, and sitting on the
Endowment for Health's Advisory Council. The Endowment for Health is a statewide, private, nonprofit
foundation dedicated to improving the health of New Hampshire's people, especially those who are vulnerable
and underserved.

)  • Provide travel training for seniors and individuals with disabilities to reduce barriers to accessing the fixed route
bus system and demand response services.

COAST, Dover, NH 2011 - 2013

Assistant Manager of Coordination
•  Worked with the Manager of Coordination as staff support for ACT, the Regional Coordination Council for

Community Transportation for Southeastem NH, comprising many of the region's community transportation
providers, social sen/ice agencies, and community health centers, and covering 38 communities.

•  Fostered the development of volunteer driver programs throughout the region by providing technicai assistance
and staff support to grassroots supporters, including municipal staff, faith communities, and active
communities. One such group. Ready Rides, began providing transportation services in February 2013.

•  Updated service gap analysis of all 38 municipalities' transportation resources.
•  Recruited riders and volunteer drivers for COASTs North Bus, a wheelchair accessible minibus providing

access to grocery stores, pharmacies, and shopping to rural towns north of Rochester.

STOUT OAK FARM, Brentwood, NH 2010 - Present
CO'Owner

•  Co-owner of an organic vegetable farm that distributes its produce through a OSA, a farm store, farmers' market,
and sales to local restaurants and homes via the Three River Farmers Alliance.

•  Assist farm manager in capital and marketing planning and decision-making.
•  Management of mini-orchard and land stewardship.

NH CENTER FOR NONPROFITS, Concord, NH 2010 - 2011

Program Coordinator
•  Successfully coordinated approximately 70 workshops and 4 conferences. This included the 3-day New

Hampshire Grants Institute and an annual Leadership Summit.
I  • Assisted the IT Director in improving the accuracy, reliability, and functionality of the primary database in which
^  all pertinent information was held. This improved data entry time and decreased errors.
•  Drafted press releases and promotional emails to drive event attendance.



VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

RACE AND EQUITY IN NH SERIES 2020 - present
Government Workgroup Member
•  Serve on the Government Workgroup to help identify objectives for action plans to Impact race and equity

statewide.

ENDOWMENT FOR HEALTH, Concord, NH 2019 - present
Advisory Council Member
•  Represent Strafford County on the Advisory Council to provide input on existing service needs and community

issues.

CONSERVATION COMMISSION, Brentwood, NH 2013 - 2109
Member, Chair

•  Represented the interests of local agriculture and conservation landowners on the Brentwood Conservation
Commission.

•  Helped determine if the town should issue wetland permits and how funding should be spent on conservation
projects.

•  Began serving as Chair of the Conservation Commission as of April 2017.

SEACOAST EAT LOCAL, Newington. NH 2006 - 2012
Secretary, Board of Directors
•  Served on the board of a mostly volunteer organization, helping to publish Seacoast Harvest, volunteering at

the winter farmers' markets, and working collaboratlvely with similar organizations.
•  Participated in fundraising, strategic planning, and was a founding board member.

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

Master of Public Administration

Recognition received: Outstanding Part-Time M.P.A. Student, 2007
Intemship: Rocklngham Planning Commission

BJV., French, minor in Political Science

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Strengthening Your Facilitation Skills Workshop, UNH Cooperative Extension, 2017
Introduction to Basic Project Management, UNH Professional Development & Training, 2016
Certified Community Transit Manager, 2014
Intro to Travel Training, 2014

Community Transportation Association of America Conference, 2012 - 2014, 2016, 2018
Volunteer Management Training Series (VMTS), Points of Light Institute, 2012
New England Grassroots Environment Fund RootSkills - Group Skills & Development, 2011
NH Grants Institute, 2009

New England Grassroots Environment Fund Retreat - Grants and Donor Fundraising Workshop, 2008


